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The former cigar factory of Henry Clay and Bock & Company,
Ltd, is a Spanish Colonial Revival building on a landscaped lot,
located in one of Trenton's residential districts. Francisco and
Jacobus, an architectural firm from New York, designed the factory
both to serve hand production processes in a climatically controlled
environment, and to project a symbolic image. As announced in 1932,
the building's "character will be Spanish, adapted to the ornamenta-
tion of a modern daylight factory."

The styling derived from the company's desire to emphasize the

- Cuban origin of its tobacco and brands, for the transfer of cigar
. production to Trenton from Havana sacrificed the "Made in Havana"

distinction. As the Trenton Chamber of Commerce magazine reported,
"It is not only in the product that we are reminded of the Cuban
capitol, but in the construction of the factory itself."

The U-shaped, reinforced concrete building achieves its in-
tended character through the "Spanish" elements of its center
courtyard, the pyramidal tower roofs and corner pents of clay tiles,
the ornate entrance-way with wrought iron gates and lamps, the sham
balconies, and the columns dividing the tripartite windows. The
courtyard features an arcaded loggia to which stairs curve around a
shallow pool. Before alteration, the reception room included a
topographical map of Cuba and dioramas depicting the processing of

-tobacco. -Rose bushes, some fruit trees, and an alley of cedar trees

leading to the entrance remain on the landscaped grounds. Though

.poorly maintained now, the place once was, in the words of the

Trenton Times, "a scene of tropical brilliance."”

The plant is two stories high over a raised basement in front,
with the back back section four stories over basement (an extension
added during construction of the main block). Flat roofs top the
building. The recessed fourth floor contained a dining room with a
view over the city. Inside, massive circular columns divide the
large expanses of space. Amont the rooms are large cedar-lined
conditioning and storage vaults, and a basement room constructed of
steel which probably served fumigating pruposes. High humidity and
constant temperatures, said to duplicate the atmospheric conditions
of Havana, were maintained by the air conditioning system.
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STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE

The cigar factory of Henry Clay and Bock & Company is the most
distinctively designed industrial bulding in Trenton and a fine
example of its style. It was constructed to house the hand produc-
tion of fine cigars, which were of wide renown. Though built as
recently as 1932, this building's significance merits its listing on
the National Register. ‘> : ~ : : : -

The Henry Clay and Bock & Company manufactured a group of

quality cigars, including the La Corona, Henry Clay, Bock, and
Village Brands, among others. Production of these cigars originated
in Cuba, where the La Corona brand had been established in 1845. By
1904, these brands and the Henry Clay and Bock & Company firm were
the property of the American Cigar Company, as was much of the best
established one of its domestic cigar factories in Trenton in 1901,
was in turn controlled by the American Tobacco Company.
In 1932, in order to benefit from lower import duties, to
obtain a more regular labor supply; and to seek expanded markets
through the resultant price reductions, the American Tobacco Company
moved its. fine cigar production to Trenton.. All planting and
processing of the tobacco remained in Cuba, with manufacturing alone
conducted here. The new factory was built elaborately, in part to
counter a possible loss of status due to the shift of manufacturing
from Havana. The building was described as "the most modern cigar
rolling plant in the world, 55 miles southwest of New York, in
Trenton, New Jersey."

As many as 3,000 people worked here during the peak years of
the 1930's, with many of the workers living in the surrounding
Chambersburg district in Trenton. The company produced as much as
one quarter of the fine cigar market in the United States.

The factory is an excellent example of twentieth century
electric design, with elements of an historical style applied to a
modern operation for symbolic pruposes. Aside from the architec-
tural styling itself, the landscaped location within a residential
neighborhood makes this unusual plant an amenity in its district.
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Alterations include the blocking up of nearly all the windows,
and changes in the reception and office areas. Despite being
designed with the capability to accommodate an additional story, the
building was never expanded. 1In 1967, the cigar factory was closed,
with plant obsolescence given as the reason for transferring opera-
tions to a new factory in Pennsylvania. The Thornwood Corporation
purchased the 'building in 1970, and it has been used since as a

warehouse for the Hibbert Company, a printing and distributing
firm.




